Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT
)

OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 00-2934 PO




)

ROBERT L. STORY,

)




)



Respondent.
)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


The Director of the Department of Public Safety (Director) filed a complaint on December 28, 2000, seeking this Commission’s determination that the peace officer certificate of Robert L. Story is subject to discipline for the conviction of a felony and gross misconduct.


This Commission convened a hearing on the complaint on May 23, 2001.  Assistant Attorney General Ted Bruce represented the Director.  Though notified of the time and place of the hearing, neither Story nor anyone representing him appeared.


Our reporter filed the transcript on July 3, 2001.

Findings of Fact

1. Story holds peace officer Certificate No. ###-##-#### and was certified at all relevant times.  

2. Story was employed by the Morgan County Sheriff’s Department from October 1999 to June 2000. 

3. In October 1999, Story entered into an agreement with Harold Houston that in return for $3,000 to be paid to Story by Houston, Story would not apply for warrants and would not have state narcotic charges filed against Houston.  Between October 30, 1999, and February 23, 2000, Houston paid $1,700 to Story.

4. On June 21, 2000, Story entered a plea of guilty in the United States District Court, Western District of Missouri, to the felony of extortion under color of official right in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1951.  The court ordered Story to pay a fine and monetary penalty, and placed him on probation for five years. 

Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to decide whether Story’s peace officer certificate is subject to discipline.  Section 621.045.
  The Director has the burden to show that Story has committed an act for which the law allows discipline. Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).

I.  Conviction


The Director alleges that Story’s certificate is subject to discipline for the conviction of a felony under section 590.135.2(1), which provides:


2.  The director may refuse to issue, or may suspend or revoke any diploma, certificate or other indicia of compliance and qualification to peace officers or bailiffs issued pursuant to subdivision (3) of subsection 1 of this section of any peace officer for the following:


(1)  Conviction of a felony including the receiving of a suspended imposition of a sentence following a plea or finding of guilty to a felony charge[.]


Story pled guilty to and was convicted of the felony of extortion under color of official right in violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1951.  We therefore conclude that Story is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(1).

II.  Gross Misconduct


The Director alleges that Story’s certificate is subject to discipline for gross misconduct under section 590.135.2(6), which provides for discipline for:


(6) Gross misconduct indicating inability to function as a peace officer[.]


A guilty plea is an admission against interest and is ordinarily some evidence of the facts charged.  Mandacina v. Liquor Control Bd. of Review, 599 S.W.2d 240, 243 (Mo. App., W.D. 1980).  Story has not offered any evidence explaining away his admission.  Therefore, we find that Story committed the conduct underlying his plea.


Misconduct is defined as “the willful doing of an act with a wrongful intention[;] intentional wrongdoing.”  Missouri Bd. for Arch’ts, Prof’l Eng’rs & Land Surv’rs v. Duncan, No. AR-84-0239 (Mo. Admin. Hearing Comm’n Nov. 15, 1985) at 125, aff’d, 744 S.W.2d 524 (Mo. App., E.D. 1988).  The term “gross” indicates that an especially egregious mental state or harm is required.  Id. at 533.  Inability is lack of sufficient power, resources, or capacity.  Merriam-Webster’s Collegiate Dictionary 585 (10th ed. 1993).  The functions of peace officers include “maintaining public order, preventing and detecting crimes and enforcing the laws.”  Baer v. Civilian Personnel Div., St. Louis Police Officers Ass’n, 747 S.W.2d 159, 161 (Mo. App., W.D. 1988) (citing Jackson County v. Missouri State Bd. of Mediation, 690 S.W.2d 400, 403 (Mo. banc 1985)).


Story’s conduct indicates an especially egregious mental state and indicates that he does not have the capacity to prevent and detect crimes and enforce the laws.  Therefore, we conclude that Story’s certificate is subject to discipline under section 590.135.2(6).

Summary


We conclude that there is cause to discipline Story’s peace officer certificate under sections 590.135.2(1) and (6).


SO ORDERED on July 25, 2001.



________________________________



WILLARD C. REINE



Commissioner

�Statutory references are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri, unless otherwise noted.
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